
 

 

Minutes of the Special General Body Meeting held on 30.03.2025 at VD Swami Auditorium,  

Dr SS Badrinath Campus, Sankara Nethralaya, Chennai 

1. Meeting called to order: As there is no adequate quorum, meeting was adjourned by ten minutes.  
2. Welcome Address by the President: Dr. Arulmozhi Varman welcomed all the members and requested to 

take their seats to continue with the agenda for the general body. 
3.  Homage - Dr. Sriram Gopal informed the demise of Dr. Sivagami. A minute silence was observed by all the 

committee members for the departed soul.  
4. Discussion on the various amendments proposed by the management committee 

Hon secretary Dr Sriram Gopal detailed the various reasons which necessitated a review of the constitution.  
He explained when and how the constitutional review committee was formed under the presidentship of Dr 
Nirmal Fredrick, its members, when and how the recommendations were submitted to the Managing committee 
which deliberated all the recommendations and then came up with the proposed amendments which were 
tabled to all members a month ago.  

 



Secretary Dr Sriram Gopal reasoned out why the constitution needed a table of contents which was not there 
earlier.  
It was passed  
Proposed by : Dr D Chandrasekar 
Seconded by : Dr Namitha B 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 
Dr Sriram Gopal first brought up the need for a uniform address 
Dr Nirmal Fredrick clarified that the address can be changed to the premises donated by Dr Siddharthan when the 
legal formalities are complete.  
Dr M Radhakrishnan queried if we could have a communication address for the time being 
Dr Sriram Gopal replied that the registrar of societies needs a permanent address for the society, and it is a legal 
requirement.   
Dr Mohanrajan promised to do whatever help needed to this regard.  
 

a. Years of existence of TNOA changed to 70 years and member strength to more the 4000 
Proposed by : Dr N Sathian 
Seconded by : Dr Chokalingam 

b. Change of address to reflect the address registered with the registrar of societies and across all documents  
Proposed by : M Radhakrishnan 
Seconded by : Dr Pandurengan 

c. Advocacy, medicolegal issues, insurance issues and finance related matters added  
Proposed by : Dr Kasinathan 
Seconded by : Dr Mohanrajan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 



Secretary Dr Sriram Gopal detailed on how the total number of members was increasing rapidly every year whereas 
the numbers were of mostly postgraduates or were doing fellowship in our state or even worse, the main purpose 
of membership was to only facilitate presenting a paper in the annual conference as mandated by the NMC a few 
years back. He explained the different memberships now in vogue, the vagueness in the definition of a “domicile” 
and the ultimate lack of quorum in our meetings in comparison to the total number of members. He stressed on 
curating the member records to include only qualified ophthalmologists who are resident in the state of Tamil Nadu 
and having a registration of additional qualification with the TNMC.   
Dr Nirmal Fredrick wanted only a brief note on each point since it was taking up so much time 
Dr Arulmozhivarman wanted a detailed explanation of each change, the rationale behind it so that the members 
understand the reason behind the changes. He wanted it to be clear that the changes were there for a reason and 
there was no motive to it. He detailed on Tamil Nadu having the largest number of post graduate seats in the whole 
country.  
Dr Balaji R explained that since they will anyways pay a membership fee it will not have a financial implication for 
the association. 
Dr M Radhakrishnan wanted to know if asking for permanent and current address will help in any way.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman explained that it would be of no use.  
Dr Sriram Gopal explained that the review committee suggested keeping these PGs aside and ratifying them when 
they produce the required documents which was practically very complicated. And that the MC had suggested that 
the PGs be kept in a separate category called “Member in Training” which also had its own share of problems.  
He suggested that a ratified life member should only be one with a PG degree, have govt issued proof of residence 
in TN and have a additional qualification registered with the TNMC. Anyone without all three can be classified as a 
associate member. This category can become a ratified life member if they produce these documents within 5 years. 
Dr Namitha B wanted to know how the other specialty associations went about this issue and whether it would 
make sense to have an annual membership.  
Dr Sriram Gopal replied that this was the case with other associations like ENT, anesthesia etc and that having an 
annual membership will mean going after each of these members for the annual subscription.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman added this was how many other state ophthalmic associations handled this as well.  
Dr Sukumar S S queried on whether the discounted conference registration fees for the PGs would continue.  
Dr Sriram Gopal replied in the affirmative saying that it would carry on as usual.  
Dr V R Vijayaraghavan wanted to know if we could make all the PGs from Tamil Nadu as life members.  



Dr Arulmozhivarman replied that they can be when they produce the PG certificate as is the practice across all 
other associations.  
Dr Thangavelu wanted a practical working solution, have a certain type of membership, have a fixed period and 
bring them into it, if at the end of the period if interested and they produce the needed proof they can be ratified. 
He also suggested that attending at least 3 GB meetings be made a criterion for becoming a life member.  
Dr Nirmal Fredrick recalled that annual membership that was in force in 2012 and said that this was something like 
that. He suggested that the term be liquid, and they be ratified in the next GB if and when they produce the needed 
proof.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman summarized that anyone who produces a PG degree certificate in Ophthalmology, Govt issued 
proof of residence in Tamil Nadu and TNMC registration within 5 years of becoming a member can be ratified in the 
next GB and added that it was not any different to what Dr Nirmal was implying.  
Dr Sriram Gopal then raised the issue of being eligible to win awards in the conference.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman reiterated that if they are eligible to present papers then they should be eligible to win awards 
as well.  
Dr Nivean brought up the case of DOS where only ratified life members are eligible to win awards.  
Dr Sukumar also wanted clarity on that point as well.  
Dr Chandrasekar pointed out that currently PGs present papers before being ratified but are eligible to win awards.  
Dr Sriram Gopal pointed out that there is fallacy that they are not ratified when they win the award but are ratified 
when they are present the award in the next conference.  
Dr Nirmal Fredrick suggested that a delineation that all should be eligible for the contested awards for presentations 
and the nominated awards should be eligible only to ratified life members.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman agreed with the same.  
Dr Vijay Shanmugam spoke for the PGs and for them to be included in all aspects of the association.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman thanked him for his inputs  
In conclusion the following 3 points will be the criterion for becoming a “Ratified Life Member” of the TNOA  

1. Postgraduate degree in Ophthalmology  
2. Govt issued proof of residence in Tami Nadu (Aadhar, Passport, Driving license, Voter ID, Ration Card) 
3. Additional qualification registration with the TNMC  

Anyone lacking even one of these will be an associate member and will continue to be so for a period of 5 years 
from the date of joining by which time if they produce such proof they will be ratified in the next GB failing which 
they will be removed from the associate member list.  
The only two current associate members can be made honorary members.  
Dr Chandrasekar cited an example of an election contestant not having a TNMC registration last year  
Dr Sriram Gopal explained the current constitution says only “domicile” and does not define it. That the main aim 
of these changes was to remove any ambiguity which existed and make it clear.  
He also went on to ask the members present what happened to the existing members who did not meet the above 
criteria.  
Dr Namitha opined that they should give the data within 3 months  
Dr Arulmozhivarman explained that this exercise should be taken up from the next conference for the existing 
members.  
Dr Sriram Gopal suggested the same and it must be started from Cherrycon since simultaneously the elections also 
will be going on during this time.  



Dr Nirmal Fredrick suggested that new resolutions need not be brought be brought up and this be taken as a 
separate amendment in the next GB 
Dr Sukumar wanted to know if a current life member will lose his voting right if he becomes relegated to an associate 
member.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman and Dr Sriram Gopal replied in the affirmative.  
Dr Sriram Gopal quoted a couple of examples wherein there was a discrepancy.  
He went on to say how digitization has helped keep the records more accurate.  
Dr Sharmila Devi wanted to know if a Bonafide certificate from the institution and registration for the conference 
alone can be make a Post graduate eligible to present papers in the annual conference.  
Dr Sriram Gopal explained that even now anyone can be a presenting author but must have a TNOA member as a 
chief author.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman agreed with the same.  
Dr Sriram Gopal queried if in “cessation of membership” the “failure to produce the documents within 5 years” 
must be added as criteria towards cessation of membership.  
Dr Chandrasekar opined that the members could continue to be an associate member for ever if they wanted 
without being ratified.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman and Dr Sukumar also agreed that they can continue as an associate member.  
Dr Chandrasekar wanted to know if we can call them domiciled members.  
Dr Nirmal Fredrick replied saying that the Societies act is a central act, and we cannot change or add as per our 
wish. 
Dr Sriram Gopal brought up the changes like  

- Period of notice for the GB reduced to 21 days instead of 30 days  
- Quorum stays at 5% as before  
- Life member will mean “Ratified Life Members” only  

All present agreed to these changes 
Dr Chokalingam opined that allopathic was not a correct term and Dr Sriram Gopal agreed saying that it should be 
ideally called “Modern Scientific Medicine”  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Manoj Khatri 
Seconded by : Dr Chockalingam 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
New committees  

Dr Sriram Gopal detailed about the new committees added and renaming the standards committee.  
Dr Kasinathan raised a query about having one single committee called member welfare committee which would 
have experts regarding issues to help members solve their issues.  
Dr Sriram Gopal clarified that many issues like medicolegal and Insurance etc have a significant overlap. This will 
enable a single point of contact and make things easier.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman suggested the President and secretary and Immediate past president and vice president as a 
part of this member welfare committee  
Dr Nirmal Fredrick explained how discussions earlier necessitated separate committees and though there was an 
overlap many issues needed different areas of expertise. He went on to agree that the president and secretary are 
Ex Officio members of all committees and the president and secretary is the first point of contact for all member 
issues. He also said how at a given point in time each committee will have a role to play in dealing with issues.  
Dr Rajasekar reiterated that the first point of contact is the secretary who will escalate it to a mail trail to the 
respective committees and relay the response to the member 
Dr Sriram Gopal agreed with the same and quoted a recent example as well  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Ravishankar 
Seconded by : Dr M Kumaran 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Managing committee 

 
 
Dr Sriram Gopal explained that the number of MC members were proposed to be increased to 15 since the present 
7 numbers was decided in the year 2000 when we had 5 district societies and 1200 members, but now there were 
18 district societies and more than 4000 members. He also added the 2018 amendment stated that one must have 
been a MC member at some point of time to take up any other office bearer post. Hence this was a bottle neck in 
members taking up office bearer posts incl vice president.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman explained the hiatus of 25 years since the numbers were increased. He also compared it to 
Maharashtra which had as many members as us also had 15 MC members. 
A member raised a query on a proportional increase and keep it lesser.  
Dr Arulmozhivarman explained that that will mean increasing it 4 times which will mean 28 members 
One member wanted it to be divided into 4 zones and have it represented proportionally  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that all district societies are not equal in size and number  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN said that all district societies are represented in the managing council  
Dr M Radhakrishnan asked if the managing council member will be eligible for contesting elections  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK clarified that they are only representative of the district society only and not a managing 
committee member  
He went on to add that the editorial committee and the ARC committee can have an increased number and have 
regional or zonal representation like in the AIOS. They could be elected members and will be part of the managing 
committee straightaway.  
He also said that the editorial board needs to be there to meet the regulation of the publishers 
Dr Chokalingam said he was seeing the same faces so getting more faces and increasing the base of representation 
it must be more participative. He added that this was going to be in the vogue for at least 5 years so it should not 
be a problem.  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that this was a way of involving more people in the affirs of the association and make 
them interested in taking up other posts  



Dr Sharmila asked about bringing in more people in ARC committee etc rather than the MC  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN explained that they are independent bodies and are not a managing committee 
themselves. MC members need to be elected and not ones who come in by virtue of being in any other committee 
like the ARC. The members of committees like the ARC are nominated and not elected  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK suggested that they be made elected members and not nominated members  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN intervened and stated that the point of discussion was increase in number of the MC 
and not whether we can have ARC and editorial board must comprise of elected members. He said this was not a 
part of the recommendations from the MC and cannot be taken up here since it was a different proposal  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK said that the recommendations of the Constitutional review committee and the MC have not 
been separately posted here and wanted recommendation of the CRC and the changes cleared by the MC 
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN replied that the Constitutional review committee was an arbitrary body formed by 
the then president. It was fully up to the MC to take those suggestions, add, delete or extrapolate them and submit 
its final proposed amendments to the members and thence the general body and that it was not binding on the MC 
to fully take up the suggestions of the CRC 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL stated that the recommendations of the CRC were sent the members of the CRC, then sent to 
the MC one month in advance for scrutiny, the changes were discussed over a zoom meeting for 3 hours prior to 
the MC meeting and then again a few points were also discussed in person at the MC meeting held in January 2025 
at the mid-year meeting. He added the MC can amend alter and change to constitution with a 30 day notice 
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK wanted more clarity on what the changes were  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL clarified that the recommendations of the MC which were being discussed here  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN reiterated his earlier point of the powers of the MC and then that MC would be 
superfluous if the CRC recommendations were to be tabled in the GB  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL said that all the MC members were in possession of the draft of the CRC  
Dr M Radhakrishnan stated that the societies act stated that any member of 10 years can stand for president elect.  
Dr D Chandrasekar brought up the point that there is a provision in the current constitution that any member can 
propose a change in the constitution with a 3 months’ notice and it was not conveyed to the members  
Dr D Chandrasekar complained that the current constitution was not present in the TNOA website  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL replied that the 2018 constitution has been at the same tab on the website since 2018 and has 
not changed since 
Dr D Chandrasekar complained again that it was not available on the website  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL opened that TNOA website and demonstrated on screen that the 2018 constitution was very 
much present at the same tab along with the conference manual etc. He clarified the terminology of the tab and he 
assumed that all members had accessed the website at some time earlier and were aware where the constitution 
could be accessed. He went on to show that the 2018 constitution was very much present and highlighted the words  
“Amendments approved by the SGB held on 3/6/2018” explaining that amendments have to be approved by the GB 
to come into force.  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN agreed to the above points and stated it was acceptable that one can complain about 
difficulty in navigation but not an allegation that it was not there at all  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Ravikumar 
Seconded by : Dr Pandurengan  
 



 
 
 
 
Functions of the Managing Committee 

 

 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL stated there were only a few clerical errors that were corrected, and it was specified that there 
should be at least one in person meeting per year  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Executive Committee – No changes  

 
 
Journal of the Association – No changes  

 
Academic and research committee 

 
Members increased to 5 instead of 3 earlier. Members to be nominated and approved by the MC  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL suggested that this could have the zonal representation which was discussed earlier  
 
Dr Sukumar SS agreed to the change  
Dr Chitra R suggested that these members to be elected  
Dr Sukumar opined that it was not possible  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that the role of these members was coordination of ARC activities in each area and 
was possible only with such an arrangement  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK drew a parallel to the AIOS model wherein there were elected members to the ARC  



DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN said that this point was not brought up in the CRC and the MC and hence could not 
be taken up as an amendment. He reiterated that the purpose of the SGB was only to discuss the recommendation 
of the MC and not bring up new ideas and did not want any deviation and dilution of that agenda  
Dr Mohanrajan agreed that the SGB needs to stick to its agenda and not deviate  
Dr Siddarthan explained that any suggestions from the members must be drafted properly well in advanced, worded 
properly an sent to the secretary to be taken up in the MC and the GB and not be mere oral suggestion in the SGB 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL reminded about how any member can suggest a change of the proper timeline and protocol 
was followed  
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Sandeep 
Seconded by : Dr Karunanithi 
 
 
Election and tenure of Office Bearers  

 
 

 
Only correction of typographical errors  
 
 



Function of Hon Secretary & Hon treasurer 

 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL pointed out an error missed earlier that stated that the “minutes of the previous meeting would 
be read” whereas it was common practice only to circulate the minutes before hand. He wanted to know if this 
could be changed to “Circulated and confirmed” 
Dr Chocklalingam corrected it to “circulated before and was accepted as read” as the right wording  
This was accepted by all 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL clarified the points about the Secretary and Treasurer being the custodians of the member data 
base due to data protection policies and the treasurer acting under the advice of the newly formed “Finance 
Committee”  
Dr Balaji R wanted to have clarity on the words “acting under the advice of the “Finance Committee” while now the 
Secretary and treasurer were acting under the advice of the EC and MC  
 
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Sathyan N 
Seconded by : Dr Jayanthan S 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Finance  

 
 
 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained the reorganization of the various accounts of the TNOA, one main account one 
sponsor account and one conference account 
He brought up the point of sharing of conference revenue and wanted a consensus on the percentage of sharing  
He clarified that the GST is fully paid to the govt, nothing is retained by the TNOA and the GST credit is a myth  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN stated that 10% is too high a number  
Dr Atheek also agreed that 10% will be not a viable number to conduct a conference  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that TDS deduction is 10% at times and 5% share for TNOA is a logistical difficulty  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL suggested it to be changed to 5% excusive of TDS  
Discussion went on to the cost of the journal. Dr Balaji clarified that not giving physical copies did not reduce the 
outgo by a big margin 
It was agreed that the TNOA share to be limited to 5% exclusive of TDS, GST and any other taxes that may apply  
 
 
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr SS Sukumar 
Seconded by : Dr R Balaji 
 
 



 
 
Conferences  

 
 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained the reason the deadline needs to be shifted to the end of the financial year rather 
than the calendar year  
He added the reasoning in adding trade partners in the defaulting list  
Dr Sathyan. N wanted to know if there should be a separate clause to state what action must be taken in case of a 
default  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL and DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN explained that this needs to be taken on a case-to-case basis 
by the EC rather than a blanket response 
Dr Chockalingam was also of the opinion that a default list needs to be submitted, and appropriate action needs to 
be taken by the EC and MC  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr D Chandrasekar 
Seconded by : Dr Vasantha 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Bye Laws 

 
Only correction of syntax and grammatical errors  
 

 



DR SRIRAM GOPAL highlighted the raise in fees for affiliated societies to INR 5000 and insisting on 50% of members 
of the affiliated society rather than 5 members as earlier. He also emphasized on making it mandatory for sending 
the annual report to the TNOA  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN added that this responsibility be passed on the ARC to ensure this happens  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that the membership fees need to be decided by the MC and GB like the conference 
fees rather than state a number  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK clarified that the same can be decided by the MC and cleared in the GB since this was only 
in the bye Laws. But it was agreed not to put in a numerical value in the constitution  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr D Chandrasekar 
Seconded by : Dr Ravikumar 
 
 
Eligibility to various Offices  

 
 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that the ambiguity in the old clause “to contest for one post” be changed to “to file 
nomination for only one post” after inputs from the Election commission  
He explained that changing / withdrawal and renomination was possible but not two nominations at the same time  
Dr Chandrasekar wanted transparency in the nominations filed from the secretary’s office  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL and DR NIRMAL FREDRICK explained that the secretary was only a returning officer who 
forwards the nomination to the election commission  
Dr Siddarthan wanted to know the frequency of the update  



Dr Chandrasekar wanted daily update  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK and many others agreed on a 48-hour update rather than daily  
Dr Chandrasekar wanted to know if the date and time of the email or hard copy was considered  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL clarified that the receipt of the email was the one considered  
CEC Dr Sukumar agreed with the same  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK clarified that hard copies needed to be sent due to legal considerations 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL summarized that email with scanned copies of the nomination form were adequate and only 
their date and time of receipt was considered, but will need to be backed up by sending the hard copy at a later 
date  
Dr Jeyanthan added the hard copies can come in only by the last date of withdrawal making the process eaasier 
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Sharmila devi 
Seconded by : Dr M Radhakrishnan 
 
 
Election Procedures  

 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained the call for elections was reduced to 4 months and the election procedure was fully 
online and there will be no on-site voting  
Dr SS Sukumar opined that the moment the elections are over the ballot needs to be counted electronically in the 
presence of the contestants and results declared unofficially and later officially in the GB  
DR NIRMAL FREDRICK stated that that was a valid point to avoid allegation of tampering  
After the discussion that ensued regarding very low numbers of on-site voting and the cost involved was brought 
up by DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN, DR NIRMAL FREDRICK wanted a provision for members to vote online on the 
first day of the conference.  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN wanted to know why not the AIOS model be followed.  
Dr Mohanrajan pointed out the difficulty in the AIOS model of online elections and the difficulty involved   



DR SRIRAM GOPAL suggested to have online voting until the first day of the conference with a helpdesk to enable 
voting on the first day of the conference  
Dr Chandrasekar wanted to know why elections had not been called for 6 months prior this year before the 
constitutional revision  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN stated that this was not the practice in the years prior and wondered why this was 
being brought up this year alone  
Dr Chandrasekar replied saying that his delay might have a role in the upcoming elections since the MC numbers 
have been increased to 15  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL wanted to know if an election called after the aforesaid deadline would countermand the 
elections of the previous year(s).  He added that the president calls for elections under the advice of the Election 
commission and the secretary only communicates the same. He recalled the discussion with the president and the 
Election comm and their suggestion to wait so that the need or physical voting can be done away with after the 
revision of the constitution.  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN was of the opinion that since the election were never called for 6 months prior and 
there had never been an issue nor was it brought up as an issue. So, he advised to move on  
Dr Chandrasekar wanted these elections to have only 7 members in the MC as before  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL said one aspect alone cannot made an exception so that would mean having physical voting as 
well  
Dr Chandrasekar said he did not want to keep physical voting but was insistent on the number of MC members to 
be kept at 7 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained that except the increase of MC members to 15 nothing else would change like the list 
of ratified members with voting rights since the new members would be ratified only at the next GB after the 
elections. He went on to recall that everyone in the GB agreed to stop physical voting and to increase the number 
of MC members from 7 to 15 as evinced by the discussions earlier. He wondered why all these changes which were 
accepted need to be postponed for another 3 years 
Dr Chandrasekar agreed to all the points but still stuck to his demand of maintaining the number of MC members 
to 7 only, but wanted all other changes with respect to the constitution and the election to be enforced this year 
itself   
Dr Siddarthan queried Dr Chandrasekar on what his point was and what he would achieve by doing such a thing 
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN wondered how if this was not acceptable for this election how it would become 
acceptable 3 years from now  
Dr Chockalingam made a point that there was still 4 months left according to the amended constitution, so we were 
not doing anything against that. He went on to say this was not a change that was brought up only one to two 
months before the elections. He also stated that when the six months period had never been followed in true spirit 
in the previous years, why this year alone that should be raised as an issue, and nothing is going to change since 
there is still 4 months time 
Dr Chandrasekar mentioned that this was his observation and just wanted to bring the point up for discussion  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL apologized that there was a delay of a month or two due to unavoidable personal reasons, but 
that delay was never intentional  
 
All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Sandeep  
Seconded by : Dr Karunanithi 
Stalls  



 
 
DR SRIRAM GOPAL highlighted that all collections of a conference must be in the name of TNOA and must go to 
accounts of the TNOA only and explained why this was important 

All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr R Balaji  
Seconded by : Dr Mohanrajan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Committees  



 

 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL detailed that the older committees were pretty much the same except renaming the standards 
committee and explained regarding the new committees and how the objective, functions, constituents and term of 
every committee had been defined better now, and all committees will have a term of one year only   

All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Chockalingam 
Seconded by : Dr Kumaran  
 
Awards  



 
No changes but for syntax in lifetime achievement awards 

Proposed by : Dr Nishanth M 
Seconded by : Dr Jeyanthan S  

 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL explained how the 4 nominated awards had different types of committees to decide. So this was 
being changed in such a way that the patron will nominate to the EC which will deliberate and pass it on to the MC 
which will decide the awardee to simplify the process. The EC can nominate only in case the patrons do not want to 
or fail to nominate an awardee 

DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN accepted all the above changes and the reasoning behind them 

This was agreed by DR NIRMAL FREDRICK 

Dr Siddarthan added that suggestion by the patron and the EC was not binding on the MC  



Dr Panneerselvam commented this was the way to organize it  

Dr Mohanrajan pointed out that the suggestion of the patron must always be respected  

All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr Kishore 
Seconded by : Dr Sudarshan 
 

  

 

 



 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL detailed that there were no changes in these awards except they were reorganized to have a 
common set of rules etc  

Dr Mohanrajan raised a query that he recollected that Capt Subramaniam and Dr C P Gupta could only be won once 
and asked if that rule still was on force 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL clarified such a clause was not there in the 2018 constitution at least  

Dr Siddarthan remarked if a person if eligible another time due to exemplary work they should not be denied the 
chance to win the award a second time  

DR SRIRAM GOPAL recalled an instance when the same topic was submitted and video, paper etc in subsequent years 
and that was taken exception to  

DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN remarked that all that can be insisted that the same topic cannot be submitted in more 
than one category in a conference as it was one difficult to track which was submitted in which year. He added that 
is a person can submit a different topic which is good in the subsequent year he / she must be eligible for an award. 
He quoted the example of the ASCRS to highlight his point  

DR SRIRAM GOPAL highlighted the point that a separate time slot be allotted for electronic posters  

DR SRIRAM GOPAL wanted to change to line stating “sharing of awards to be avoided” to “sharing of awards is not 
allowed” and this was accepted by all  

The statement that all new awards can only be in existing sessions and not a new session also was accepted by all  

The endowment award was increased to 10 lakhs 

DR NIRMAL FREDRICK queried why this was increased  

DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN replied saying that the last revision was from 1 to 5 lakhs 20 years ago. Factoring in 
the value of money this was a very modest two time increase only after a span of 20 years  



He quoted the example of KSOS which takes 5 lakhs for a prize and 10 lakhs for an oration which actually in force for 
only 5 & 10 years and not for a lifetime like the TNOA. Maharashtra was taking 12 lakhs but they and due to too many 
requests, they and Karnataka have both put a freeze on the process and set a limited time for such awards  

So he said that this was a reasonable increase   

He recalled how the Dr Joseph Gnanadickam and Dr G Venkatasamy were brought in as plenary sessions and that 
cannot be done any more  

He pointed out how in other societies orations are a part of other sessions like a keynote. This ensures better 
attendance unlike in our case which is a plenary session.  

He wanted to investigate ways to make it a non-plenary or ways to increase attendance in the plenary sessions  

DR SRIRAM GOPAL wanted to know if here awa a way to delink these two orations from the GB proceedings and have 
them as plenary session in the middle of the first and second days  

Dr Mohanrajan wanted the orations to be only at 7 lakhs  

DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN remarked that competitive prizes / best paper awards can be kept at 7.5 Lakhs. 
Orations can be kept at 10 lakhs but cannot be a new session or plenary. The orations can only be a part of existing 
session.  

Dr Pannerselvam remarked that the cost needs to be kept high and with the increasing number of awards the 
pressure on the scientific committee was also becoming more 

DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN said that the MC at any point can decide to freeze the process for a specific period. He 
added that this was just fixing the procedure and the decision to add another award was always left to the MC of that 
year  

  

All the above amendments were passed  
Proposed by : Dr M Radhakrishnan 
Seconded by : Dr Namitha  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Managing Council  

 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL pointed out that except reducing the time for calling a meeting of the managing council to 21 
days everything else was unchanged  

 

DR SRIRAM GOPAL mentioned that the concession to the past presidents and senior embers was unchanged  

He added that the expenditure limit of the Hon secretary was raised to INR 25,000 from INR 10,000 in 2018 keeping 
in mind the inflation  

No changes but for syntax in lifetime achievement awards 

Proposed by : Dr Chandrasekar 
Seconded by : Dr Balaji R  
 



Dr Chandrasekar spoke on how all points were discussed in the true spirit of the constitution, thanked everyone 
and apologized if he had raised his voice at any point of time  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN said that was no offense was taken and asked to move on  
Dr Siddarthan thanked past president DR NIRMAL FREDRICK for constituting the CRC and allowing them to work on 
it. He detailed on how they had worked on it for many months and submitted it to the MC. He complimented the 
secretary DR SRIRAM GOPAL for the beautiful presentation of all the various amendments.  
He thanked all the participants of the GB whom he described as wonderful for all their inputs and discussions.  
He added a personal note especially to the MC members and the youngsters. He remarked that when have a 
criticism or we find something wrong in any procedure or functioning of anyone, instead of indulging in a fault-
finding mission he wanted them to point it out in a good way and come up an alternative positive action plan. He 
said that we are all working for the one cause of the TNOA.  
Dr Sukumar SS as CEC wanted all the nominees in the election to have a peaceful and good election process  
DR. N V ARULMOZHIVARMAN thanked everyone, called the next generation to get together to do things better 
than what is now an take TNOA to a higher level.  
Dr Mohanrajan went on stage and requested the support for his candidature for the post of Vice President of the 
AIOS  
DR SRIRAM GOPAL thanked DR T S Surendran, Chairman Sankara Nethralaya for his spontaneous support in conduct 
of the meeting in their premises 
Dr Sharmila proposed the vote of thanks and thanked all involved  
 
 
Minuted by Dr Sriram Gopal, Hon Gen Secretary 
 


